
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
North Plains Senior Center 

31450 NW Commercial Street 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 08/18/2014 Council meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 

be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment Registration 
form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  You are not required 
to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your name.  
Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. PRESENTATION 

A. Swearing in of Police Officer Matt Glem 
B. Proclamation for Muscular Dystrophy Association (MDA) and the “Fill the Boot” 

fundraiser by Washington County Fire District 2. 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director, the Chief of Police and the 

Library Director.  
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Fourth of July Reconciliation 
B. Approve Resolution No. 1852 Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with 

Washington County Consolidated Communications Agency (WCCCA)  
C. Approve Resolution No. 1853 Meter Reading Contract with Metereaders, LLC 
D. Discussion and selection of beneficiary organization for Pumpkin Fun Run event 

in October 
E. Discussion of Vanderzanden property on Commercial Street 
F. July Check Register 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 205



10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled   
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 
 

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

B. September 2014 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Irene Kay’s 100th Birthday Party 2-6 p.m. at the Senior Center on Sunday, 
September 7, 2014. 

 Artist’s Reception 6-7:30 p.m. at the Library on Friday, September 12, 2014. 

 Council Candidate Forum at Jessie Mays at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, September 
30, 2014 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will also 
endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other services, 
if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please call City Hall 
at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains 

Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. 
 

The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Monday, Sept. 15, 2014 Monday, October 6, 2014 Monday, October 20, 2014 
 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 205



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 
Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher led the flag salute.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher, Council President Teri Lenahan, Councilors: 

Charlynn Newton, Robert Kindel, Jr., Michael Broome and Glen Warren 
 

Excused: Michael Demagalski 
 

Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder; Public Works 
Director Blake Boyles; Library Director Debra Brodie; City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 08/04/2014 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Kindel and seconded by Warren to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 No comments were forthcoming. 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Public Works Director.  Blake Boyles reported on the status of the McKay Fields 
subdivision on West Union. They have started work on the infrastructure and houses will 
start being built sometime in November. It will be very close to the same timeline as the 
Polygon project in the east expansion area. 
 
The leak detection inspector will arrive this week. Public Works has this inspection 
conducted every two years. This inspection ends up saving the city money each time it is 
completed. 
 
Boyles is working on a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) that would include 
Wascoe Street East of Main Street. He will submit the grant proposal to Council at a later 
date. 
 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 205



Council asked to have a Work Session conducted to educate Council on the Emergency 
Management Plan the City has in place. They would like to know the logistics regarding 
where the manual is and how to run the generator. 
 
Chief of Police. Chief Snyder reported a change in communications in the law enforcement 
community is in the works.  This is a large project in which all communication will be going 
digital. This project will be merging the communication methods of the Washington County 
and Clackamas County law enforcement agencies. They will be changing out radios, 
building more sites and towers. This will be a multimillion dollar endeavor over the next few 
years. 
 
Matt Glem has been hired to replace Officer Peterson. Snyder will have Officer Glem sworn 
in at one of the September Council meetings. 
 
The Hood to Coast relay is this coming weekend. The team met their goal of raising $10,000 
for cancer research. Snyder reported there was a lot of effort put into raising this money and 
training for the event by the team. 
 
Library Director:  The kids Summer Reading Program sign-ups has been going like 
gangbusters. The adult Summer Reading Program is not going as well this year as last. A 
genealogy class will be starting in September. The First Friday Flick is going well in the new 
location at Jessie Mays Community Hall. There are not more people attending, but it is 
easier to monitor the activities of the attendees. 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of proposed open space near McKay Creek and 307th development 
 
DeBry presented the staff report. A preapplication meeting for a subdivision project near 
307th was conducted. A conceptual design of this proposed project was included in the 
Council Packet. If the City could acquire some of the property that may be available from the 
builder, it could go toward the McKay Creek Walking Trail project which is a part of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. Discussion ensued. No decision was made as this item was 
informational only. 
 

B. Approve Westside Quilters Guild request to include Jessie Mays Community Hall 
in Public Art Project displaying quilt designs. 

 
Westside Quilters Guild is participating in a public art project to display quilt designs on large 
buildings such as barns or halls. They had requested the City to consider allowing a quilt 
which would honor one of their members who recently passed away: Veronica (Roni) 
Andrews.  Ms. Andrews was very active in the North Plains community as a volunteer.  Barn 
quilts are considered art, and there are people who will seek them out as a part of trail 
designated by the Westside Quilters.  Washington County is adjusting its code to allow 
these quilts in unincorporated areas. This should provide a small benefit to the community 
by attracting more tourists.   

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 205



Motion by Kindel. Second by Lenahan to authorize the use of Jessie Mays Community Hall 
as a site for displaying a Westside Quilters barn quilt. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

C. Consider Resolution Numbers: 1850 and 1851 Special City Allotment Grant 
Applications for Pacific Street and Commercial Street 

 
Public Works Director Blake Boyles presented his staff report. Each biennium, the Oregon 
Transportation Commission disperses funds through the Oregon Department of 
Transportation to assist small cities with population under 5,000 with grant funds to repair, 
reconstruct or maintain local streets that are not part of the State Highway system. Boyles 
had prepared applications for two projects in town and is requesting approval from the 
Council to pursue applying for these grants. The projects are NW Commercial Street from 
NW Main Street east 370 feet and the second application is for an 825 foot section of NW 
Pacific Street east of NW Main Street. 
 
Motion by Lenahan. Second by Broome to adopt Resolution Number 1850 authorizing the 
submittal of an Oregon Department of Transportation Special City Allotment grant 
application for NW Commercial Street from NW Main Street east 370 feet. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 
Motion by Warren. Second by Broome to adopt Resolution No. 1851, authorizing submittal 
of an application to the Oregon Department of Transportation for 2015 Small Cities 
Allotment Grant Program in the amount of $50,000.00 for NW Pacific Street from NW Main 
Street east 825 feet. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
DeBry reported there is a golf tournament going on at Pumpkin Ridge this week so we may 
experience an increase in traffic and business for the town. 
 
Garcia Birthday Band will be playing at the last Concert in the Park on Friday, August 29 
from 6:30 to 8:30 p.m. at Jessie Mays. DeBry will be cooking up hot dogs and hamburgers 
for city staff as an end of the summer celebration and thanks for all the activities everyone 
worked on through the summer. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 205



Councilor Broome asked Council if they would approve a fundraiser dance to raise money to 
install a covering in front of the yellow house for the food pantry.  This would protect 
individuals from the elements as they wait their turn for food supplies. It was suggested that 
the cover not exceed 200 sq. ft. and that we get volunteers to construct this covering to keep 
costs down. 
 
Council asked what steps would need to be taken to install a traffic light at the intersection of 
Glencoe and Pacific Streets. There is a concern with the increase in homes in the area that 
congestion will increase at this intersection. DeBry stated a traffic impact study will need to 
be conducted along with the next subdivision application. Glencoe is a County road so it 
would ultimately be a county decision.  
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 North Plains Marketplace every Thursday evening on Commercial Street 

 Concerts in the Park: Every Friday night in August from 6:30 to 8:30 
 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
 
The Council meeting was adjourned into Executive Session at 8:18 p.m. for the purpose of 
reviewing performance evaluations of the City Manager. Mayor Hatcher closed the 
Executive Session at 10:50 p.m. 
  
16. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Hatcher adjourned the City Council Regular Session at 

10:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved ___________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 205



City of North Plains 
Police Department  

8/29/14 
 
 
TO:               Martha DeBry, City Manager 
  City Council  
  Department Heads 
 
 
FROM: Bill Snyder, Police Chief 
 
 
SUBJ.: DEPARTMENT REPORT   

 
- NPPD was configured on the new REJIN project by Portland Police Bureau.  

Training for officers will begin in about January of 2015. 
 

- A NPPD officer was assaulted during an arrest for Interfering with police. 
 

- Several NPPD officers are scheduled for multiple court appearances for the 
month of September due to arrests that were made over the past three months. 

 
- Mass casualty training was attended.  WCSO put on the training during late 

August. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 205



Activity
2014 

Aug

2014 

July

2014 

June

2014 

May

2014 

Apr

2014 

Mar

2014 

Feb

2014 

Jan

2013 

Dec

2013 

Nov

2013 

Oct

2013 

Sep

2013 

Aug

2013 

July

2013 

June

2013 

May

2013 

Apr

2013 

Mar

2013 

Feb
Agency Assist 1 2           1       1       3       3  NA        -       5        -       1       1        -       4        -       1       1 

Animal Bite/Complaint          -            -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -       1        -        -       1        - -      -             - 

Arson - Possible          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -      -             - 

Assault 1          -            2       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -       1        -        -       1       1        - -            1 

Burglary 1          -            1        -       1        -        -  NA        -       1       1        -       1        -        -       1       1       1 

Child Abuse          -            -        -        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Child Neglect          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        - -      -             - 

Criminal Mischief 1           2       3        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -       1       1       2       1 

Death Investigation          -            -        -        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Detox Arrest          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -      -             - 

Drug Arrest 1 2          -            1       2       1       1       2  NA       4        -        -       1       1       3       2       2       2       1 

Drug Investigation          -            2       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

DUII 1 1          -            1        -        -       1        -  NA        -       2        -       1       1       1        - 1      -             - 

False Information Arrest          -            -        -        -        -        -  NA       1        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Forgery          -            -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -       1        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Found Property          -            -        -        -       1       1  NA       2       2       1       1       1       1       1 -      -            1 

Fraud          -            1       4        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Furnishing Alcohol to Minor          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        - -      -             - 

Harrassment 1           1          1        -       1        -       1  NA        -       1       1        -        -       1        -       1 -            1 

Hit and Run 1          -            -        -       1        -        -  NA       1        -       1        -        -       1       1       1       1        - 

Identity Theft          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -      -             - 

Information Report 4 1          -         3       1        -       4  NA       2        -       3       1       2       7        -       3       3       1 

Interfering Arrest 1          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1       1        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Littering Arrest          -         1        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -      -             - 

Menacing Arrest          -         1        -        -        -  NA        -        -       1        -        -        - -      -             - 

Police Mental Hold 1           1       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -            1 

Police Protective Custody          -   -         -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      1      1      -      

Rape II          -            1        -        -       1        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Reckless Driving          -            -        -        -       2        -  NA        -        -        -        -       1        -        - -      -             - 

Recovery of Stolen Property          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        - -      -             - 

Runaway 1          -         1        -        -        -  NA       2        -        -        -        -       2        - -      -             - 

Sex Abuse III           1 

Stalking Arrest          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -      -             - 

Switched Plates          -   -      -             - 

Theft 2           2          2       1       1       1       2  NA       1       6       2       1       3        -        -       1       1        - 
___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 205



Traffic Related Reports          -            1       2        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Trespass II 1          -            -        -        -       1        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Vehicle - Accident 2 1          -            -        -        -       2        -  NA       1       3       3        -       1        -       1 -      -             - 

Vehicle - Accident (Fatal)          -            -        -       1        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Vehicle - Eluding Arrest          -   -         -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      1      

Vehicle - Stolen 1          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        - -      -            1 

Vehicle - Unlawful Entry 1          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1       3        -       1       2       2        - 

Vehicle - Tow          -            1        -       3       1       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Violation Release Arrest          -            -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        -        - -      -             - 

Warrant arrest          -            -        -        -       1       1  NA       1        -        -       1       4        -        -       1       1       1 

Welfare Check          -            2        -       1        -       1  NA       1        -       2        -       1       1       1       2 -            5 

Total Arrests/Reports/ 

Investigations 16 13 8 16 21 12 15 19 NA 18 21 20 11 21 20 18 17 15 17

Total Patrol Hours 318 320 244.25 210.5

Total Reserve Hours 121.5 152.5 136.5 79.5

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 205



    City of North Plains 

Public Works Department 

8/25/2014 

TO:   Martha DeBry, City Manager 

  City Council 

  Department Heads 

FROM:  Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT  

 

 Special City Allotment Grant application 

 Leak detection completed Aug 19th-21st 

 Tank cleaning scheduled for Sept 11th 

 Sunset Ridge Subdivision coordination 

 North Ave Subdivision pressure test and chlorinated waterline 

 Pacific Estates Subdivision coordination 

 McKay Fields Subdivision coordination 

 Wascoe St CDBG application 

Public Works Crews are working on the following projects/tasks: 

 Equipment Maintenance  

 Crack sealing 

 Cross Connection  

 Locates 

 Leak repair 

 Service installation 

 Water samples 

 Mowing 

 Park Maintenance 

 Curb painting on Commercial and Kaybern 

 Garlic Festival setting up and clean up 

 Beaverton, Banks and Beyond coordination 

 Building maintenance  

 Landscape maintenance (library)  

 Construction inspection (North Avenue and Pacific Street) 

 Working with American Leak Detection 

 Clean up with Garden Club 

 

 

Future reports will include tasks accomplished and those pending. If there is any other information you may 

want to see in the report, please let me know.- 
___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 205



City of North Plains - Library Department – September 2014 
 
TO: Martha DeBry, City Manager, and to City Council Members 
FROM: Debbie Brodie, Library Director 
SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
 

Library Card Sign-up Month and Lucky Library Barcode Contest.  Since 1987, Library Card 

Sign-up Month has been held each September to mark the beginning of the school year.  It is a time 
when the American Library Association and libraries across the country remind parents that a library 
card is the most important school supply of all.  In North Plains, we celebrate the month with the 
Lucky Library Barcode Contest.  Match your library card with the numbers on the barcode list each 
week to win your choice of yummy prizes. 
 

Blind Date with a Book.  Can’t decide what to read next?  Looking for something new?  Let us 

surprise you.  Choose a specially-wrapped book from our display based on the brief description of the 
book’s genre and age group (teen or adult).  Take it home, unwrap, and read!  Then, fill out the 
enclosed review card and bring it back to the Library where it will be entered in a drawing to win a $20 
Barnes & Noble gift card.  Return the book, and go on another blind date!  
 

Banned Books Week – Celebrating the Freedom to Read.  Banned Books Week is an annual 
event, and will be held this year from September 21-27.  It highlights the value of free and open 
access to information.  Banned Books Week brings together the entire book community – librarians, 
booksellers, publishers, journalists, teachers, and readers of all types – in shared support of the 
freedom to seek and to express ideas, even those some consider unorthodox or unpopular.  Come to 
the Library to see our display celebrating the freedom to read, and watch celebrity videos for the 
Banned Books Week Virtual Read-Out 
http://www.ala.org/bbooks/bannedbooksweek/events/virtualreadout. 
 

Storytimes.  Children ages 0-6 are invited to participate every Wednesday at 11:30 a.m. in the 

children's section of the Library. 

 September 3 Storytime with Miss Marion:  School Daze 

 September 10 Storytime with Children’s Librarian Becky:  Silly Animals 

 September 17 Special Guest Storytime:  Metro West Ambulance 

 September 24 Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:  Turtles 
 

Art Exhibit.  The art exhibit on display in September and October will feature Guardian Relics by 

Patricia Cochran.  “I see my glassed figures as haunting little relics that nod to our common past - a 
time when we lived in tribes, or clans, or villages and worked together to survive. By placing my 
figures in groupings, and combining tiny treasures of nature with scraps of fabric and bits of bead, I 
hope to evoke within the viewer an echo of recognition to an ancient time when ancestral voices sang, 
a tree was sacred, or the earth was venerated. Art has the power to help quiet our busy lives. It gives 
us a place to focus our attention and allow the inner voices to speak. It can connect us with our past 
and those who came before us.”  A reception for the artist will be held on Friday, September 12 from 
6:00-7:30 p.m. at the Library.  Refreshments will be served. 
 

Quilt Display.  The quilt on display over the checkout desk throughout the month of September was 

pieced by Roni Andrews of North Plains just before her death on July 8.  It was quilted by Stephanie 
Hinsvark of Red Hot Quilts in Hillsboro.  The pattern is "Mango Tango," designed by Laurie Shifrin.  
Roni created the quilt for her physician and friend, Judith Kemp of Hillsboro.  Roni had been a faithful 
volunteer at the Library since 2008 and was a member and officer of the Friends of the Library.  Her 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 205

http://www.ala.org/bbooks/bannedbooksweek/events/virtualreadout


tireless work in the community enriched every area in which she was involved.  Roni was also a 
member of the North Plains Garden Club and a founding member of the Westside Quilters Guild, 
established in 2006.  She will be missed by all who were fortunate to call her friend. 
 

Writers’ Group.  Share your writing projects and receive feedback from peers on Thursday, 
September 4 at 6:30 p.m.  New members are welcome to join.  (This is not a teacher/trainer-led 
class.) 
 

First Friday Flick.  Join us on the first Friday of each month at the Jessie Mays Community Hall at 
30975 NW Hillcrest Street at 6 p.m. for a FREE movie showing.  On Friday, September 5, come see 
a PG-rated animated film in which the Muppets find themselves involved with jewel thieves lead by a 
Kermit the Frog imposter. 
 

Friends of the Library.  There will be a general meeting of the Friends on Monday, September 8 

at the Library from 7:30-9 p.m.  New members are welcome to attend. 
 

Library Book Club.  Join us on Wednesday, September 24 at 7:30 p.m. at the Library to discuss 

The Goldfinch by Donna Tartt.  "The author of the classic bestsellers The Secret History and The Little 
Friend returns with a brilliant, highly anticipated new novel.  A young boy in New York City, Theo 
Decker, miraculously survives an accident that takes the life of his mother.  Alone and abandoned by 
his father, Theo is taken in by a friend's family and struggles to make sense of his new life.  In the 
years that follow, he becomes entranced by one of the few things that reminds him of his mother - a 
small, mysteriously captivating painting that ultimately draws Theo into the art underworld.  Composed 
with the skills of a master, The Goldfinch is a haunted odyssey through present-day America and a 
drama of almost unbearable acuity and power.  It is a story of loss and obsession, survival and self-
invention, and the enormous power of art."—Text provided by the publisher. 
 

Circulation Statistics for Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  WCCLS Director, Eva Calcagno, recently 

noted two trends.  1) Countywide, e-book circulation is again up almost 55% from the previous year.  
WCCLS purchases most e-books for the entire county, and that funding was recently increased, 
which undoubtedly helped maintain this growth.  The total e-book circulation countywide now equals 
the total circulation of Garden Home and Cornelius libraries combined.  2)  The total countywide 
circulation of all other materials was 2.5% less than the previous year, or a reduction of about 
328,000.  The Shute Park Branch Library was closed for 8½ months of the year, and its circulation 
was down 72% or about 394,000 from the previous fiscal year.  The amount that overall circulation 
was down roughly equals the amount that Shute Park was down, implying that otherwise, circulation 
countywide has leveled but did not decrease.  The three public libraries with increases in circulation 
were Banks (2.39%), North Plains (.96%), and Hillsboro Main (17.03%), which picked up patrons from 
the Shute Park closure. 
 

Coming in October – Beginner Internet Genealogy.  Learn how to use Family Search, 

Heritage Quest, and Ancestry databases.  Explore websites such as Find-a-Grave and Cyndi’s List.  
Three FREE classes will be taught by Library staff member Donna.  Call the Library to sign up for one 
or all classes (503-647-5051): 

 Wednesday, October 08 Basic Record-Keeping and Heritage Quest 

 Wednesday, October 15 Family Search, Find-a-Grave, and Cyndi’s List 

 Wednesday, October 22 Ancestry and Wrap-up 
Classes will be hands-on.  Come prepared with whatever information you have about people you want 
to find - names, dates and locations of birth, death, and marriage.  Class size is limited to nine public 
computers. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 205



City of North Plains 
Oregon 

Proclamation 
Muscular Dystrophy Association 2014 

Fill-the-Boot 
 

WHEREAS, Washington County Fire District 2 has been working with the Muscular 

Dystrophy Association in their fight against neuromuscular disease; and 

 

WHEREAS, “Fill-the-Boot” is an opportunity for Oregon fire fighters to ask community 

members to drop donations into their fire boots to help local families served by MDA in the 

state. This year marks the 60th anniversary of the partnership between firefighters and MDA in 

the fight against muscle wasting diseases; and 

 

WHEREAS, Washington County Fire District 2 has spent many hours collecting money 

on the streets for this campaign; and 

 

WHEREAS, firefighters, locally and nationally, are the largest contributors to the MDA. 

Washington County Fire District 2 Firefighters collected $5,521.86 in 2012 and $9,694.81 in 

2013 to help in the fight against 43 different types of neuromuscular diseases. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon 

do hereby proclaim Saturday, September 6, 2014 as: 

 

Washington County Fire District 2 “Fill-the-Boot” Day for the City of North Plains. 

 

 

 

Given unto my hand this 2nd day of September, 2014. 

 

Signed, 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

David Hatcher 

Mayor 

Agenda Item No: 6A 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 205



 

Agenda Item No. 9A  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date: September 2, 2014 

To: City Council 

From: Martha DeBry-City Manager 

Subject: Final reconciliation of 2014 Fourth of July Expenses..  

Background:  Council had requested a final report of expenses from the Fourth of July 

Celebration. Attached is a spreadsheet of budgeted expenses and the actuals. 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 205



City of North Plains
Fourth of July Event Review
as of August 18, 2014

Budgeted Actuals
Revenue
03/17/2014 Sponsorship 4th of July Don/Spon‐ 4th donation  Knight of Pythias Glencoe L 250              
03/18/2014 Sponsorship 4th of July Donation  FRIENDS OF N.PLAINS LIBRARY 250              
05/12/2014 Sponsorship 4th of July Don/Spon  Abbey Creek Vineyard 100              
05/29/2014 Sponsorship 4th of July Don/Spon  PAINE TRACT LLC 1,000          
06/19/2014 Sponsorship 4th of July Don/Spon  VALLEY MACHINE SERVICE 500              
06/23/2014 Sponsorship 4th of July Don/Spon ‐ Branded Brass Concert  OREGON‐CANAD 500              

Sponsorship  2,600          
05/29/2014 Car Show 4th of July Car Show Reg LEIGHTON MANGELS 10                
07/03/2014 Car Show car show registrations x3 robert case ck number 1264  Miscellan 30                

Car Show car show registration june paypal 30                
07/14/2014 Car Show car show registration july paypal 40                
07/07/2014 Car Show car show  SIZER, JAY & KELLY 10                
07/07/2014 Car Show car show rev  Miscellaneous 981              
07/09/2014 Car Show car show  Geller 20                

Car Show  1,121          
04/11/2014 Vendor Midnite Oils booth fee 25                
05/22/2014 Vendor 4th of July Vendor  Black Tigar Embroidery 25                
03/31/2014 Vendor Scott Smith PayPal Payment for 4th of July Vendor 50                
04/30/2014 Vendor 4th of July Vendor Paypal 50                
05/31/2014 Vendor 4th of July Vendor paypal 50                
07/07/2014 Vendor vendor registration  Miscellaneous 100              
07/09/2014 Vendor Barron 25                

Vendor June paypal 250              
07/14/2014 Vendor July paypal 125              
07/22/2014 Vendor Zimmerman 50                

Vendor  750              
07/08/2014 Car Show Sponsor Loch Lolly 75                
07/08/2014 Car Show Sponsor Reliable Transmission 75                
07/08/2014 Car Show Sponsor Westside Cruisers 75                

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 205



07/08/2014 Car Show Sponsor Halstead Building 75                
07/08/2014 Car Show Sponsor Residential Realty 75                
07/08/2014 Car Show Sponsor Allied Products 75                
07/15/2014 Car Show Sponsor Padfield Carpets 75                

Car Show Sponsor  525              
07/08/2014 Info Booth info booth revenue  Miscellaneous 415              
07/14/2014 Info Booth Misc 3                  
08/06/2014 Info Booth tshirt 5                  

Info Booth  423              
06/06/2014 Donation Ice cream social donations  Miscellaneous 27                
06/16/2014 Donation Reclass raffle monies to 4th of July 300              
06/30/2014 Donation Reclass raffle monies to 4th of July 174              
07/07/2014 Donation donation  Miscellaneous 8                  
07/07/2014 Donation donation  SIZER, JAY & KELLY 10                
07/14/2014 Donation July paypal 10                
08/12/2014 Donation Columbia Bank 100              

Donation  629              
Grand Total Revenue 6,047           11,500      (5,453)       

Expense
05/22/2014 Fireworks Fireworks Show deposit WES025 ‐  WESTERN DISPLAY FI 2,500          
07/09/2014 Fireworks Fireworks WES025 ‐  WESTERN DISPLAY FI 7,500          

Fireworks  10,000         10,000      ‐             
07/09/2014 Entertainment Band for the 4th of July Event BLACK ‐ Steve Reding 1,300          
08/05/2014 Entertainment band dinner at senior center 50                
07/24/2014 Entertainment Mitch Ward PA System 50                
08/05/2014 Entertainment Senior center pies 149              
06/30/2014 Entertainment star rental VIS004 ‐  VISA/ CARDMEMBER S 329              

Entertainment Band, Mean Satisfaction 400              
Entertainment  2,278           1,800        (478)           

08/05/2014 Portable Toliets 1,488          
Portable Toliets  1,488           1,500        12              

04/30/2014 Planning and Materials 4th of july ex 2                  
05/31/2014 Planning and Materials 4th of July Vendor Ex 2                  

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 205



06/30/2014 Planning and Materials 4th of July Vendor Ex 3                  
06/30/2014 Planning and Materials 4th of July Vendor Ex 12                
06/30/2014 Planning and Materials albersons 52                
06/30/2014 Planning and Materials chevron 18                
07/14/2014 Planning and Materials 4th of July Vendor Ex 8                  
07/14/2014 Planning and Materials 4th of July Vendor Ex 24                

8/5/2014 Planning and Materials tshirts Macs WW 965              
Planning and Materials  1,086           2,403        1,317         

05/28/2014 Car show 100 ‐ 3x3 Magnetic Plaques RAL101 ‐  RALLYE PRODUCTION 202              
Car show expenses from Pat 32                

07/24/2014 Car show Award specialities 272              
07/24/2014 Car show Car show emblem Macs WW 215              

Car show 721               901           180            
03/05/2014 Marketing 4th of July ‐EIG iPage VIS004 ‐  VISA/ CARDMEMBER S 36                
6/25/2014 Marketing 4th of July meetings and tshirt aLAN005 ‐ CHRISTINE LANTZ 165              
6/25/2014 Marketing 4th of July meetings and Family LAN005 ‐ CHRISTINE LANTZ 161              

01/22/2014 Marketing 4th of JULY  Graphic Design ServLAN005 ‐ CHRISTINE LANTZ 289              
05/28/2014 Marketing REIMBURSERMENT Delivery of 4WHI101 ‐ SIERRA WHITE 1                  
06/30/2014 Marketing facebook VIS004 ‐  VISA/ CARDMEMBER S 50                

post cards Chris lantz 57                
Marketing  759               300           (459)           

03/05/2014 Kids Area Fourth of July  2014/15 VIS004 ‐  VISA/ CARDMEMBER S 16                
06/30/2014 Kids Area Oriental Trading‐4th of July VIS004 ‐  VISA/ CARDMEMBER S 230              
06/30/2014 Kids Area Dollar Tree ‐ 4th of july materia VIS004 ‐  VISA/ CARDMEMBER S 10                
06/30/2014 Kids Area Amazon orders VIS004 ‐  VISA/ CARDMEMBER S 225              

Kids Area  482               596           114            
Donation 230               ‐            (230)           
Subtotal Materials Expense 17,044         17,500      456            

Staff Time:
  Planning 6,149           8,691        2,542         
  Week of and Event 2,449           ‐            (2,449)       
  Public Works (budgeted in PW) 1,576           ‐            (1,576)       
Subtotal Personnel Expense 10,174         8,691        (1,483)       

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 205



Grand Total Expense 27,217         26,191      (1,026)       

Net Revenue (21,170)        (14,691)    (6,479)       

In kind Estimate 110

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 205



 

Agenda Item No: 9B       

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 2, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Police Chief Bill Snyder 

Subject: Resolution Number 1852 authorizing amendment and execution of 

intergovernmental agreement between the City of North Plains and 

Washington County Consolidated Communications Agency 

Request:  Council to approve Resolution Number 1852 authorizing an 
intergovernmental agreement to be entered into by the City of North Plains with the 
Washington County Consolidated Communications Agency. 
 
Background:  North Plains is a member of the Washington County Consolidated 
Communications Agency (aka WCCCA) which is amending its intergovernmental 
agreement.   The template presented was vetted by the WCCCA board and has already 
been adopted by some agencies.  The agreement spells out the relationship between 
the agencies and funding.  The agreement is renewed year to year automatically.  
 
Fiscal Impact:   The City assigns its 9-1-1 excise taxes to WCCCA and pays an 
additional member fee each year (currently $12,500), based on an adopted formula.  
WCCCA is cost effective for small agencies which could not otherwise fund a 
dispatching operation.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  Motion to adopt Resolution Number 1852 authorizing amendment and 
execution of intergovernmental agreement between the City of North Plains and 
Washington County Consolidated Communications Agency 
 
Attachment – Resolution, Agreement 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 205



RESOLUTION NO. 1852 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT AND EXECUTION OF 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
AND WASHINGTON COUNTY CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains is a participating jurisdiction in the Washington 
County Consolidated Communications Agency (WCCCA); and 

 
WHEREAS, WCCCA was created for purposes of establishing and operating a 

public safety emergency communications system inclusive of a 9-1-1 jurisdiction; and 
 
WHEREAS, this provides a cooperative and coordinated 9-1-1- primary public 

safety answering point for police, fire and emergency medical services for the benefit 

of all participating jurisdictions; and 

 

WHEREAS, WCCCA is amending the Intergovernmental Agreement to provide, 

among other things, for a new fee formula for participating jurisdictions and updating the 

language of the Intergovernmental Agreement to appropriately reflect the current ORS 

references and participating jurisdictions. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, authorizes the Mayor to execute a continuance of 
the intergovernmental agreement, a copy of which is marked Exhibit “A”, attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein, with the Washington County Consolidated 
Communications Agency. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of September, 2014. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 
 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 205



AMENDMENT N o .  2  

T O  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

WASHINGTON COUNTY CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 

 

 

THIS AMENDMENT to the Washington County Consolidated Communications 

Agency Intergovernmental Agreement (herein "Intergovernmental Agreement") is made and 

entered into, pursuant to ORS 190.010 and by and among the Cities of Banks, Beaverton, 

Cornelius, Durham, Forest Grove (including Forest Grove Rural Fire Protection District), 

Gaston, Hillsboro, King City, North Plains, Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin; the Fire Districts of 

Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue, Washington County Fire District #2, Cornelius Rural Fire, 

Gaston Rural Fire, Banks Fire Protection District #13; Forest Grove Rural Fire and Washington 

County (herein "participating jurisdictions"). 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS the participating jurisdictions have previously entered into the 

Intergovernmental Agreement creating the Washington County Consolidated 

Communications Agency (herein "Agency" or “WCCCA”) for purposes of establishing and 

operating a public safety emergency communications system inclusive of a 9-1-1 jurisdiction 

as contemplated by ORS 403.105 to 403.250 that provides a cooperative and coordinated 9-

1-1 primary public safety answering point for police, fire and emergency medical services for 

the benefit of all participating jurisdictions; and 

 

WHEREAS, from time to time, by amendment, the Intergovernmental Agreement 

has been modified to provide, among other things, expanded membership in the Agency; and 

 

WHEREAS the participating jurisdictions now desire to further amend the 

Intergovernmental Agreement to provide, among other things, for a new fee formula for 

participating jurisdictions and updating the language of the Intergovernmental Agreement to 

appropriately reflect the current ORS references and participating jurisdictions. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Intergovernmental Agreement is hereby amended, with 

said amendments incorporated into the text of the Intergovernmental Agreement and the 

entirety of the Intergovernmental Agreement, as amended, set forth below. 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. WASHINGTON COUNTY CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 

The participating jurisdictions hereby create a 9-1-1 jurisdiction responsible for the 

provision of 9-1-1 service and public safety communications and agree that the Agency 

will be under ORS 190.003; and known as the WASHINGTON COUNTY 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 205



 

2. POWERS AND AUTHORITY 

The Agency is vested with all powers, rights and duties necessary for performing the 

functions of a 9-1-1 public safety answering point and initiating appropriate response 

pursuant to ORS 403.105 to 403.250, including, but not limited to contracting for such 

services, as approved through the normal chain of authority for the Agency. 

 

3. GOVERNING BODY AND VOTING BOARD 

a. The Agency shall be governed by a Board of Commissioners (herein "Board"), 

whose membership shall consist of voting and non-voting members. One 

representative from each participating jurisdiction shall constitute the Board. 

Each participating jurisdiction shall appoint, at its pleasure, one primary 

representative and one alternative representative, who may attend and participate, 

as provided herein, in all Board meetings in the absence of the participating 

jurisdiction's primary representative. Representatives and alternates shall be an 

elected official or employee of their respective participating jurisdictions. 

 

b. Only the herein identified participating jurisdictions' Board members shall have 

the authority to move, second or vote on any Agency Board action.  These 

participating jurisdiction representatives shall be known as the Agency Voting 

Board.  The Agency Voting Board will consist of those representatives of 

participating jurisdictions, singly or in combination, that contribute one percent or 

more of the total user fees paid by all participating jurisdictions.   Initially the 

Voting Board shall consist of representatives of the cities, of Beaverton, Hillsboro, 

Tigard, Tualatin, Forest Grove, Sherwood, and Cornelius; Washington County; 

and the Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue. In addition the Voting Board shall 

include one representative selected by the City participating jurisdictions of King 

City, Durham, North Plains, Gaston, and Banks, and  one representative selected 

by the participating Fire District participating jurisdictions of Cornelius Rural Fire 

Protection District, Banks Fire Protection District #13, Gaston Rural Fire 

Protection District, and Washington County Fire District #2. 

 

c. The Voting Board shall be responsible for 

• Approval and adoption of the Agency Strategic Plan 

• Adoption of the Agency's annual budget and objectives 

• Approval of the “User Formula” for calculating fees to participating 

jurisdictions  

• Approval of all contracts in amounts as authorized by Agency 

administrative directive. 

 

d. All meetings of the Voting Board and CEO Board shall be held in accordance 

with Oregon Public Meeting Laws, ORS 192.610 to 192.690. A majority of the 

members of the Voting Board shall constitute a quorum for purpose of 

deliberation and decision of the Agency. All decisions of the Voting Board, 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 205



unless otherwise provided herein, shall require a majority vote of those 

representatives in attendance and voting. 

 

e. The Voting Board, at the first meeting of every other calendar year, shall elect a 

Chair and Vice-Chair. The Chair shall be an elected official unless there is no 

elected official on the Voting Board willing to accept the position of Chair.  If an 

elected official is unavailable or unwilling to serve, any member of the Voting 

Board may be elected Voting Board Chair.  The term of the Chair and Vice-Chair 

shall be two years. The Chair, and in his/her absence the Vice-Chair, shall preside 

over all Voting Board meetings. The Communications Director, or designee, shall 

act as Clerk of the Board and be responsible for providing notices of meetings and 

keeping of minutes, as required by Oregon Public Meetings Laws. 

 

4. CEO BOARD 

a. There is hereby established a Chief Executive Officer's Board (herein "CEO 

Board") consisting of five (5) Voting Board participating jurisdiction 

representatives. The CEO Board shall consist of the Chair of the Voting Board 

(who shall be the Chair of the CEO Board); the Chief Administrative Officers 

or their designees from the two largest participating jurisdictions (as determined 

by the participating jurisdiction's user fee contribution), and two Chief 

Administrative Officer members who shall be appointed at-large by the Voting 

Board from the remaining participating jurisdictions. In the event the CEO Chair 

also represents one of the two largest participating jurisdictions, then three at-

large members of the CEO Board shall be appointed, by the Voting Board, from 

the remaining participating jurisdictions. The CEO Board shall elect a Vice-Chair 

at the first meeting of every other calendar year. The term of the Vice-Chair shall 

be two years.  In no case shall any jurisdiction have more than 1 member on the 

CEO Board. 

 

b. The CEO Board shall, among other things: 

• Nominate and recommend contract employment terms and 

conditions for the Agency Director subject to Board ratification 

• Based upon the direction of the WCCCA Board of 

Commissioners, provide oversight and direction to the WCCCA 

Director regarding all Agency operations 

• Approve policies and strategies for Agency service levels and 

administrative directives 

• Approve salary levels for all Agency employees subject to Board 

ratification 

• Recommend the Agency's annual budget to the Voting  Board 

• Review and make recommendations to the Voting Board 

regarding user fees as detailed in Appendix A 

• Provide for an annual audit of the Agency's finances 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 205



• Approve all contracts in amounts as authorized by Agency 

administrative directive. 

• Review all contracts over $50,000 and make recommendations to 

the Voting Board 

• Serve as final step of grievance procedure for unclassified 

employees 

• Provide direction and advice to Director regarding labor 

negotiations and make recommendations to Board of 

Commissioners. 

• Perform other duties and responsibilities that may be assigned by 

the Voting Board. 

 

c. A majority of the members of the CEO Board attending a duly held meeting shall 

constitute a quorum for the purpose of deliberation and decision. Each CEO Board 

member shall have one vote. Approval of at least three (3) CEO Board members is 

required for any action. 

 

5. TECHNICA L ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

There is hereby established a Technical Advisory Committee (herein “TAC”), consisting 

of one representative appointed from each member law and fire agency. Each agency may 

also appoint an alternate, who will have voting authority in the absence of their agency’s 

primary representative. (Refer to section 3b for list of member jurisdictions that will 

provide user agency participation.) . . TAC representatives shall be employees of their 

respective agencies and possess the appropriate decision-making authority needed to 

participate in the TAC function. 

 

a. TAC shall 1) provide advice and counsel to the Board, CEO Board and 

Communications Director in matters of Agency operational priorities, policies 

and procedures; 2) review and recommend to the Communications Director for 

adoption by the Agency, Standard Operating Guidelines (herein "SOG"); 3) 

provide advice and counsel to the Communications Director in the development 

of the Agency's annual operating budget; and 4) review and make 

recommendations to the CEO Board and Voting Board regarding user fees as 

detailed in appendix A. 

 

A majority of TAC members in attendance at a duly held meeting shall constitute 

a quorum for the purpose of deliberation and decision. Each agency 

representative on TAC shall have one vote. Any TAC Representative who 

provides the contracted response for a single or multiple jurisdictions shall have 

one vote.  Any TAC Representative who has oversight responsibility of multiple 

user agencies shall have a vote for each of those agencies. 

 

b. All decisions of TAC shall require a majority vote of those representatives in 

attendance.   

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 205



 

c. TAC, at its first meeting of each calendar year, shall elect a Chair and Vice-Chair 

for one-year terms. TAC shall meet at least quarterly, and at a time and place 

designated by its members. Special meetings of TAC may be called by the Chair 

or any two (2) members upon at least seven (7) days prior written notice to all 

TAC members. 

 

6. COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR 

a. The Board shall select and appoint a Communications Director, based 

upon administrative and technical competence. 

 

b. The Communications Director shall be the chief administrative officer of the 

Agency and be responsible for 1) Agency administration, personnel, purchasing 

and budget functions, in conformance with the policies and rules adopted by the 

Board; 2) dispatching, phone answering, recordkeeping, security and other 

Agency functions in conformance with the policies adopted by the Board; 3) 

hiring, training, discipline and/or discharge of all subordinate Agency personnel, 

subject to applicable Agency rules and policies; 4) attending and providing 

executive staffing of Board, CEO Board and TAC meetings; and 5) preparing 

and presenting to the Agency Budget Committee a proposed budget for the next 

fiscal year. 

 

7. FUNDING 

a. The services of the Agency shall be funded from contributions from participating 

jurisdictions, including the relinquishment or assignment of each participating 

jurisdiction's 9-1-1 excise taxes. Distributions of the 9-1-1 excise tax will be made 

in accordance with ORS 403.240.  

 

b. Participating jurisdiction contributions shall be calculated in a manner known 

as the "Member Fee Formula" as described in Appendix A. Member Fee 

contributions shall be paid in four (4) equal installments and due no later than 

July 10, October 10, January 10, and April 10 of each year. 

 

c. Those consolidated Voting Board members from small city and small fire 

district Agency members, shall have their annual member fee contribution 

increases capped at no more than three percent (3%) each fiscal year.  The 

affected Agency members are specifically identified in article 3b (Governing 

body and Voting Board) of this agreement.  The portion of member fees not paid 

by consolidated Voting Board members as a result of section 3b is paid by non-

consolidated Voting Board members on a proportionate-share basis of total user 

fees for Voting Board members whose votes are not consolidated.   

 

8. INCREASING MEMBERSHIP 

The Voting Board shall develop a method for allowing Agency membership for other 

units of local government. New participating jurisdictions shall be accepted as members 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 205



of the Agency only upon unanimous approval of all Board members, via the normal 

chain of authority for the Agency. All participating jurisdictions shall be responsible for 

directly or indirectly providing an emergency service. Emergency services are police, 

fire or emergency medical services. 

 

9. DURATION. WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 

This Agreement is perpetual and the Agency shall continue from year-to-year provided, 

however, 1) any participating jurisdiction may withdraw from the Agency upon 

providing written notice to the Chairman not later than June 30 of any year for 

withdrawal effective July 1 of the following calendar year; and 2) the Agency may be 

dissolved upon mutual agreement of all participating jurisdictions. A participating 

jurisdiction may withdraw from the Agency without written notice required herein, only 

if agreed to by all remaining participating jurisdictions 

 

10. REMEDIES 

If a participating jurisdiction withdraws from this Agency, but fails to provide necessary 

notice or to obtain mutual consent of all participating jurisdictions, the parties agree that 

the liquidated damages for such action shall be not less than the withdrawing party's share 

of the Agency's annual operation costs for the next fiscal year, as determined by the 

Agency's Member Fee Formula. In the event any party files litigation to enforce this 

Agreement, or any portion thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable 

attorney fees and costs, including any fees and costs incurred in an appeal, and as 

determined by the appropriate court. 

 

11. AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement may only be changed, modified, or amended upon three-fourths (3/4) 

vote of all participating jurisdictions. 

 

12. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Agreement shall become effective when it has been authorized by resolution of a 

majority of the governing bodies of the participating jurisdictions identified herein. 

Notwithstanding paragraph 8, Increasing Membership, those participating jurisdictions 

that do not enter into this Agreement prior to its effective date, may become members of 

the Agency upon authorization by resolution of their governing bodies, provided such 

authorization is enacted prior to December 1, 1990. Any jurisdiction desiring to join the 

Agency after December 1, 1990, may do so subject to paragraph 8, Increasing 

Membership. 

 

13. PRIOR AGREEMENTS 

This Agreement, upon its effective date, supersedes the previous WCCCA 

Intergovernmental Agreement, however, any and all prior agreements of WCCCA and/or 

between the participating jurisdictions regarding cooperative and coordinated efforts to 

provide a 9-1-1 primary public safety answering point for police, fire and emergency 

medical services shall remain in full force and effect until modified, terminated and/or 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 205



replaced by the participating jurisdictions. The WCCCA established pursuant to this 

Agreement shall maintain any and all rights and responsibilities of the previous WCCCA 

in regard to other persons or parties. 

 

14. SEVERABILITY 

The terms of this Agreement are severable and a determination by an appropriate body 

having jurisdiction over the subject matter of this Agreement that results on the invalidity 

of any part, shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement. 

 

15. INTERPRETATION 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be liberally construed in accordance 

with the general purposes of this Agreement. 

 

16. EXECUTION AND COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be 

deemed an original, and such counterparts together will constitute only one 

instrument.  Any one counterpart will be sufficient for the purpose of proving the 

existence and terms of this Agreement, and no party will be required to produce an 

original or all of the counterparts in making such proof. 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 205



SUBSCRIBED TO AND ENTERED INTO by the appropriate officer (s) who is duly authorized 

by resolution to execute this Agreement on behalf of the governing body of the below-named 

unit of local government. 

 

SIGNATURE LINES HERE 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Banks                                                               Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

Banks Fire Protection District #13                                Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Forest Grove                                                    Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this ___________day of ____________________, 2014 

 

 

 

______________________________                       _______________________________ 

Forest Grove Rural Fire Protection District                Legal Counsel 

                                                                                   APPROVED AS TO FORM          

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 205



Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Beaverton                                                         Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Cornelius                                                          Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

Cornelius Rural Fire District                                          Legal Counsel 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Durham                                                            Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Gaston                                                              Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 205



 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

Gaston Rural Fire District                                             Legal Counsel 

                                                                                 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Hillsboro                                                           Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of King City                                                          Legal Counsel 

                                                                                    APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of North Plains                                                      Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Sherwood                                                         Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 205



 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

City of Tigard                                                               Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

City of Tualatin                                                             Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue                                      Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

Washington County Fire District #2                              Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

Dated this                       day of                                        , 2014 

 

 

 

 

Washington County                                                      Legal Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 205



 

Agenda Item No. 9C  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date: September 2, 2014 

To: City Council 

From: Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 

Subject: Resolution No. 1853 approving an agreement with Metereaders, LLC.  

Background:  In April 2014 the City’s hand held meter reading device crashed. The 

software on the unit is outdated and cannot be restored. Staff assessed purchasing a 

new meter reader device and continuing to have a Utility Worker read the meters 

monthly versus contracting with a local meter reading company.  The comparison of 

cost of purchasing a new reader and software vs outsourcing to Metereaders, LLC is 

attached. 

Fiscal Impact: The annual contract with Metereaders, LLC will cost $0.87 per meter, 

which is about $9,030/year assuming 865 meters read monthly.  The most significant 

savings are a result of not purchasing a new device, paying an annual maintenance fee 

of approximately $1,300 and not using 2.25 days/month of staff time to read water 

meters.  The contract allows the addition of meters at any time. 

Environmental Issues:  NA 

Sample Motion: I move to adopt Resolution No. 1853 approving the agreement with 

Metereaders, LLC. 

 

Attachments – Resolution, Meterreaders Contract, Cost Comparison 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 205



RESOLUTION NO. 1853 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH METEREADERS, LLC.  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains reads water meters on a monthly basis to 
initiate water billing; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City’s handheld meter reading device stopped functioning in April, 

2014; and  
 

WHEREAS, a cost comparison of using in-house resources vs. outsourcing the task 
to a local meter reading company demonstrated outsourcing was more cost effective in 
2014.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Plains, Oregon authorizes the City of North Plains to enter into a contract with 
Metereaders, LLC.  

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of September, 2014. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 
  

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 205



City of North Plains

Meter Reading Options

April 23, 2014

Outsource - Meter Readers In house

815 meters Hardware package 16,019.76  

Hand held meter reader

One time setup: 24 radio transmitters

Charge per meter 0.75           611.25          Training

Monthly cost Utility Worker II for 2.25 days/month

Charge per meter 0.87           709.05          Hourly rate w payroll burden 36.25  652.50        

FY14 cost 2,029.35       FY14 cost 17,324.76  

FY15 estimate, assumes 50 new homes FY15 estimate, increase to 2.5 days/month

865 meters

Hourly rate w payroll burden 36.25  725.00        

Monthly cost

Charge per meter 0.87           752.55          Annual maintenance 1,290.00    

FY15 annual estimate 9,030.60       FY15 annual estimate 9,990.00    

In April 2014 the City's hand held meter reader crashed. The software on the machine is outdated and cannot be restored. The City assessed 

purchasing a new meter reader and continuing to have a Utility Worker read the meters, and outsourcing the meter reads. 

The outsourcing option is significantly less in the first year, because there is no need to purchase a hand held meter. In future years the 

outsourcing option is still less. Therefore the City proposes to move to the outsourced option. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 205



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 
A CONTRACT between THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON ("City"), and  METEREADERS, 

LLC ("Consultant"). 

 

WHEREAS, the City prepared a Request for Proposal which sought qualified professional consulting 

services relative to Water Meter Reading. 

 

WHEREAS, Consultant, in response to said Request for Proposal, responded with a proposal for the 

provision of said consulting services; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, based on the foregoing, City and Consultant wish to enter into a written agreement 

for the provision of said meter reading services the terms of which are as follows: 

 

1. Term 

 

The term of this contract shall be from July 1, 2014 until June 30, 2016 unless sooner terminated under 

the provisions of this contract. 

 

2. Consultant's Service 

 

The scope of Consultant's services and time of performance under this contract are set forth in Exhibit A.  

All provisions and covenants contained in Exhibit A are hereby incorporated by reference and shall 

become a part of this contract as if fully set forth.  Any conflict between this written contract and the 

Consultant's Proposal shall be resolved first in favor of this written contract. 

 

3. Consultant Identification 

 

Consultant shall furnish to City Consultant's employer identification number, as designated by the 

Internal Revenue Service, or, if the Internal Revenue Service has designated no employer 

identification number, Consultant's Social Security number. 

 

4. Compensation 

 

City agrees to pay Consultant in accordance with Exhibit A. 

 

5. Project Managers 

 

City's Project Manager is Blake Boyles.  Consultant's Project Manager is Greg Reynolds. Each party 

shall give the other written notification of any change in Project Manager. 

 

6. Project Information 

 

Consultant agrees to share all Project information, to fully cooperate with all corporations, firms, 

contractors, governmental entities, and persons involved in or associated with the Project.  No 

information, news, or press releases related to the Project shall be made to representatives of 

newspapers, magazines, television and radio stations, or any other news medium without the prior 

authorization of City's Project Manager. 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 205



7. Duty to Inform 

 

Consultant shall give prompt written notice to City's Project Manager if, at any time during the 

performance of this contract, Consultant becomes aware of actual or potential problems, faults, or 

defects in the project, any nonconformity with the contract, or with any federal, state, or local law, 

rule, or regulation, or has any objection to any decision or order made by City.  Any delay or failure 

on the part of City to provide a written response to Consultant shall constitute neither agreement 

with nor acquiescence in Consultant's statement or claim, and shall not constitute a waiver of any of 

City's rights. 

 

8. Consultant is Independent Contractor 

 

Consultant is an independent contractor for all purposes and shall be entitled to no compensation other 

than the compensation expressly provided by this contract. 

 

9. Overtime 

 

Any person employed on work under this contract, other than a person subject to being excluded from 

the payment of overtime pursuant to either ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or 29 USC §§ 201 to 209, shall 

be paid at least time and a half for all overtime worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week. (ORS 

279.316) 

 

10. Indemnity and Insurance 

 

a. Indemnity:  Consultant acknowledges responsibility for any and all liability arising out of their 

performance under the terms of  this contract and shall hold City harmless from defend and 

indemnify City as against any and all liability, settlements, loss, costs, and expenses in connection 

with any action, suit or claim resulting or allegedly resulting from Consultant's acts, omissions, 

activities, or services in the course of performing this contract or for the acts or omissions of their 

assignees, transferees, agents, employees and/or subcontractors. 

     

b. Liability Insurance:  Consultant shall maintain occurrence form commercial general liability and 

automobile liability insurance for the protection of Consultant, the City, its Commissioners, 

directors, officers, agents, and employees.  Coverage shall include personal injury, bodily injury, 

including death, and broad form property damage, including loss of use of property, occurring in the 

course of or in any way related to Consultant's operations, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 

combined single limit per occurrence.  Such insurance shall name the City as an additional insured. 

 

c. Workers' Compensation Coverage:  Consultant certifies that Consultant has qualified for State of 

Oregon Workers' Compensation coverage for all Consultant's employees who are subject to Oregon's 

Workers' Compensation statute, either as a carrier insured employer as provided by ORS 656.407 or 

as a self-insured employer.  Consultant shall provide to City within 10 days after contract award a 

certificate of insurance evidencing overage of all subject workers under Oregon's Workers' 

Compensation statutes insured by an insurance company satisfactory to City, if any.  The certificate 

and policy shall indicate that the policy shall not be terminated by the insurance carrier without thirty 

(30) days' advance written notice to City.  A copy of the certificate of self-insurance issued by the 

State shall be provided to City if the consultant is self-insured. 

 

d. Professional Errors and Omissions:  Consultant shall provide City with evidence of professional 

errors and omissions liability insurance for the protection of Consultant and its employees, insuring 

against bodily injury and property damage and arising out of or resulting from Consultant's negligent 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 205



acts, omissions, activities or services, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit 

per occurrence.  Such insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

 

e. Certificates:  Consultant shall furnish the City certificates evidencing the date, amount, and type of 

insurance required by this contract.  All policies will provide for not less than thirty (30) days' 

written notice to the City before they may be canceled. 

 

f. Primary Coverage:  The coverage provided by insurance required under this contract shall be 

primary, and any other insurance carried by City shall be excess. 

 

11. Work is Property of City 

 

All work, including but not limited to documents, drawings, papers, computer programs, and 

photographs, performed or produced by Consultant under this contract shall be the property of City. 

 

12. Law of Oregon 

 

The contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oregon.  Venue shall be in the Circuit Court 

for Washington County, Oregon.  CONSULTANT, BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, 

HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE IN PERSONUM JURISDICTION OF SAID COURT. 

 

13. Successors and Assignments 

 

a. Each party binds itself, and any partner, successor, executor, administrator, or assign to this 

agreement. 

 

b. Neither the City nor the Consultant shall assign or transfer their interest or obligation hereunder in 

this Agreement without the written consent of the other.  Consultant must seek and obtain the City's 

written consent before subcontracting any part of the work required of Consultant under this 

contract.  Any assignment, transfer, or subcontract attempted in violation of this subparagraph shall 

be void. 

 

c. In the event the Consultant assigns, transfers or subcontracts any of the work contemplated or 

necessitated by the terms of this contract to some third party, Consultant will ensure that said third 

party is made subject to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 

14. Records 

 

Consultant shall retain all books, documents, papers, and records that are directly pertinent to this 

contract for at least three years after the City makes final payment on this contract and all other 

pending matters are closed.  

 

Consultant shall allow the City, or any of its authorized representatives, to audit, examine, copy, take 

excerpts from, or transcribe any books, documents, papers, or records that are subject to the 

foregoing retention requirement.   

 

15. Breach of Contract 

 

Consultant shall remedy any breach of this contract within the shortest reasonable time after Consultant 

first has actual notice of the breach or the City notifies Consultant of the breach, whichever is earlier.  

If Consultant fails to remedy a breach in accordance with this paragraph, the City may terminate that 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 205



part of the contract affected by the breach upon written notice to Consultant, may obtain substitute 

services in reasonable manner, and may recover from Consultant the amount by which the price for 

those substitute services exceeds the price for the same services under this contract. 

 

If the breach is material and Consultant fails to remedy the breach in accordance with this paragraph, the 

City may declare consultant in default and pursue any remedy available for a default. 

 

Pending a decision to terminate all or part of this contract, the City unilaterally may order Consultant to 

suspend all or part of the services under this contract.  If the City terminates all or part of the 

contract pursuant to this paragraph, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation only for services 

rendered prior to the date of termination, but not for any services rendered after the City ordered 

suspension of those services.  If the City suspends certain services under this contract and later 

orders Consultant to resume those services, Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable damages 

actually incurred, if any, as a result of the suspension. 

 

To recover amounts due under this paragraph, the City may withhold from any amounts owed by the 

City to Consultant, including but not limited to amounts owed under this or any other contract 

between Consultant and the City.   

 

16. Termination for Convenience 

 

The City may terminate all or part of this contract at any time for its own convenience by written 30 day 

notice to Consultant.  Upon termination under this paragraph, Consultant shall be entitled to 

compensation for all services rendered prior to actual notice of the termination or the receipt of the 

City's written notice of termination, whichever is earlier, plus Consultant's reasonable costs actually 

incurred in closing out the contract. 

 

17. Intellectual Property 

 

The interest in any intellectual property, including but not limited to copyrights and patents of any type, 

arising from the performance of this contract shall vest in the City.  Consultant shall execute any 

assignment or other documents necessary to effect this paragraph.  Consultant may retain a 

nonexclusive right to use any intellectual property that is subject to this paragraph.  Consultant shall 

transfer to the City any data or other tangible property generated by Consultant under this contract 

and necessary for the beneficial use of intellectual property covered by this paragraph.   

 

18. Payment for Labor or Material 

 

Consultant shall make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to Consultant labor or material 

for the prosecution of the work provided for in this contract. (ORS 279.312) 

 

19. Contributions to the Industrial Accident Fund 

 

Consultant shall pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from Consultant 

incurred in the performance of this contract, and shall ensure that all subcontractors pay those 

amounts due from the subcontractors. (ORS 279.312) 

 

20. Income Tax Withholding 

 

Consultant shall pay to the Oregon Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant 

to ORS 316.167.   

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 205



 

21. Payment of Claims by the City 

 

If Consultant fails, neglects, or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for labor or services 

furnished to Consultant or a subcontractor by any person in connection with this contract as the 

claim becomes due, the City may pay the claim to the person furnishing the labor or services and 

charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due to Consultant pursuant to this 

contract.  The City's payment of a claim under this Paragraph shall not relieve Consultant or 

consultant's surety, if any, from responsibility for those claims. (ORS 279.314) 

 

22. Workers Compensation 

 

Consultant is a subject employer that will comply with ORS 656.017.  Consultant warrants that all 

persons engaged in contract work and subject to the Oregon workers compensation law are covered 

by a workers compensation plan or insurance policy that fully complies with Oregon law.  

Consultant shall indemnify the City for any liability incurred by the City as a result of Consultant's 

breach of the warranty under this Paragraph. (ORS 279.320) 

 

23. Medical Care for Employees 

 

Consultant shall make payment of all sums to any person, co-partnership, association or corporation, 

furnishing medical, surgical and/or hospital care incident to the sickness or injury of Consultant's 

employee(s), all sums which consultant agrees to pay for such services and all moneys and sums 

which Consultant collected or deducted from the wages of employees pursuant to any law, contract 

or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for such service. (ORS 279.320) 

 

24. Modification 

 

Any modification of the provisions of this contract shall be reduced to writing and signed by the parties. 

 

25. Counterparts 

 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all of which when taken together shall 

constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to 

the same counterpart.  Each copy of the Agreement so executed shall constitute an original.     

 

26. No Waiver of Legal Rights 

 

A waiver by a party of any breach by the other shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent 

breach. 

 

27. Integration 

 

This contract contains the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior written or oral 

discussions or agreements regarding the same subject. 

 

28. Time is Of the Essence. 

 

Consultant agrees that time is of the essence under this Agreement. 

 

29. Force Majeure. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 205



 

Neither the City nor Consultant shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of 

God, war or similar events or occurrences where such event or occurrence was beyond the 

reasonable control of the City or Consultant respectively.  Consultant will however make all 

reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon cessation 

of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 

   

 

 

METEREADERS, LLC     CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 

 

__________________________________  _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________  _________________________________ 

 

Title_______________________________  Title:  _____________________________ 

 

Telephone: __________________________  Telephone: _________________________ 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 205



EXHIBIT A:   EXCLUSIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

 CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, hereinafter referred to as CITY is a public corporation 

duly organized under Oregon law. 

 

 METEREADERS, LLC, hereinafter referred to as METEREADERS, is a reading service 

engaged in the business of providing a utility meter reading service.  In consideration for the mutual 

promises between METEREADERS and CITY to faithfully comply with the terms of the agreement 

set forth below, CITY and METEREADERS intend to be fully bound by the terms of this agreement. 

 

 A. Duties of METEREADERS 

 

  1.  METEREADERS agrees that each reading period they shall read all water meters 

designated to be read by CITY.  These meters comprise those located in or served by the CITY. 

 

  2.  METEREADERS shall not be responsible for readings associated with an opening 

or closing of customer accounts with CITY, nor shall METEREADERS be responsible for rereads, 

checking for vacancies, verifying whether meters are on or off, reading meters inside buildings, 

pumping flooded vaults, or reading meters inside vaults that are not readable without entering.  

Further, METEREADERS shall not be responsible for reading meters the access to which is 

obstructed in such a manner that more than due diligence is required to read the meter, which is 

inclusive of extreme weather conditions caused by an act of God that would make it impossible for 

METEREADERS to perform said contracted service during the current reading period.  If reading is 

delayed beyond the reading period, both parties shall decide when the readings shall be completed by 

METEREADERS for that certain reading period. 

 

  3.  METEREADERS agrees that they shall commence reading meters on or near the           

20th of the month.  The final results of the meter readings shall be submitted no later than the 25th day 

of the month. 

 

  4.  METEREADERS agrees to provide liability insurance for fraud, liability property 

damage and bodily injury, with at least $1,000,000 single limit liability, naming the City of North 

Plains as the additional insured.  Such insurance shall remain in effect throughout the duration of 

services rendered to CITY by METEREADERS.  METEREADERS further agrees that they shall 

personally indemnify their agents not covered by or exceeding the terms of METEREADERS liability 

insurance policy. 

 

   5.  METEREADERS agrees that meter reading records shall remain the property of 

CITY and will be immediately returned to CITY upon termination of reading services.  All records 

and files developed or specifically acquired for the performance of this contract and any confidential 

proprietary information shall remain the exclusive property of METEREADERS. 

 

  6.  METEREADERS agrees that all information provided by CITY or obtained by 

METEREADERS through performance of this agreement shall be confidential and shall not be 

disclosed or otherwise provided to any other person. 

 

 B.   Duties of CITY 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 205



  1.  CITY grants to METEREADERS the exclusive right to read all water meters located 

in or served by the CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, whether now existing or installed in the duration of 

this contract. 

 

  2.  CITY agrees to maintain all such meters and meter enclosures in reasonable repair 

and order at all times so METEREADERS can perform contracted service without undue dangers or 

hardships.  Furthermore, METEREADERS shall not be held responsible or liable for any defective or 

faulty meters and meter enclosures.  

 

  3.  By the 16th day of the month, CITY shall furnish to METEREADERS a computer 

text file containing all records necessary to update METEREADERS database. 

 

  4.  CITY shall make payments to METEREADERS at their business office in 

accordance with the payment terms in Section C below. 

 

 C.   Payments 

 

1. Frequency of payments:  Payments shall be made to METEREADERS from CITY  

shall be based exclusively on the adjusted number of meters read per month.   This figure shall be 

multiplied by $0.87 per meter. 

 

 D.   Commencement Date 

 

  1. The commencement date of this agreement is July 1, 2014.  All terms of this 

agreement shall remain in full force and effect for two years through June 30, 2016.  CITY shall have 

the option to renew this agreement for an additional two years upon agreement of price adjustments, as 

submitted or negotiated. 

 

 E.   Fees 

 

  Should litigation occur regarding the provisions of this agreement, all litigation 

expenses, collection expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorney's fees including appeals shall be 

paid to the prevailing party. 

 

 F.   Merger  

 

  This document represents the entire and integrated agreement between CITY and 

METEREADERS and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or arguments whether oral or 

written.  No oral representations or modifications shall be binding unless evidenced by written 

document signed by both CITY and METEREADERS. 

 

G. It is expressly understood and agreed that METEREADERS is not the agent of CITY 

and has no power or authority to bind CITY on any basis whatsoever, nor may 

METEREADERS hold themselves out as an agent of CITY.  The full relationship 

between CITY and METEREADERS is that of an independent contractor. 

 

 H.   Early Termination 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 205



 Either CITY OF NORTH PLAINS or METEREADERS may terminate this agreement in the 

event of a breach by the other.  Prior to such termination, however, the party seeing to terminate shall 

give to the other party written notice of the breach and the party’s intent to terminate.  If the party has 

not completely cured the breach within 30 days of the notice, then the party giving the notice may 

terminate the agreement at any time thereafter, by giving a written notice of termination. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, METEREADERS and CITY have executed this Service 

Agreement as of the day and year first above written.  Individuals signing on behalf of a principle 

warrant that they have the authority to bind their principles. 

 

 

METEREADERS, LLC    CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

 

 

By                                                                  By ___________________________________ 

 

Name _____                                                  Name _________________________________ 

 

Title                        ______                            Title __________________________________ 

 

Date                                                               Date __________________________________ 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 205



 

Agenda Item No: 9D      

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 2, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Selection of beneficiary organization for Pumpkin Run 

Request:  Council select an organization to receive proceeds from Pumpkin Run. 
 
Background:  Last year the City hosted the Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade.  The 
event includes a run and free activities for children.  Registrations from the run generate 
a net revenue.  The Friends of the North Plains Library received the net proceeds from 
last year’s event.   
 
Having a charitable or community organization as a beneficiary is one way to create 
interest in a run.  Anecdotally we know some runners participated specifically because 
the run benefitted the library.   
 
Council requested that they select the benefitting organization this year.  Suggestions 
for Council’s consideration are: 
 

A. City of North Plains 
B. Friends of the North Plains Public Library 
C. Lucky to Serve 
D. North Plains Community Garden Club 
E. North Plains Elementary Parent Teacher Organization 
F. North Plains Events Association 
G. North Plains Food Pantry  
H. North Plains Senior Center 
I. North Plains Senior Plaza 

 
Fiscal Impact:   The Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade was a revenue neutral event 
for the City.  Sponsorships, donations and registrations generated more revenue than 
was spent on the event.   
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation:  Council select an organization to benefit from the proceeds of the 
Pumpkin Run.   
 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 61 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 62 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 63 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 64 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 65 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 66 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 67 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 68 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 69 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 70 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 71 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 72 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 73 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 74 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 75 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 76 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 77 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 78 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 79 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 80 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 81 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 82 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 83 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 84 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 85 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 86 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 87 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 88 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 89 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 90 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 91 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 92 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 93 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 94 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 95 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 96 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 97 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 98 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 99 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 100 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 101 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 102 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 103 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 104 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 105 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 106 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 107 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 108 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 109 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 110 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 111 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 112 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 113 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 114 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 115 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 116 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 117 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 118 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 119 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 120 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 121 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 122 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 123 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 124 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 125 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 126 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 127 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 128 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 129 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 130 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 131 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 132 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 133 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 134 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 135 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 136 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 137 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 138 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 139 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 140 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 141 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 142 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 143 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 144 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 145 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 146 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 147 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 148 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 149 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 150 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 151 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 152 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 153 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 154 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 155 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 156 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 157 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 158 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 159 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 160 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 161 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 162 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 163 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 164 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 165 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 166 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 167 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 168 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 169 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 170 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 171 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 172 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 173 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 174 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 175 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 176 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 177 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 178 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 179 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 180 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 181 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 182 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 183 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 184 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 185 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 186 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 187 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 188 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 189 of 205

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9F

mreh
Typewritten Text
July 2014 Check Register

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 190 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 191 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 192 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 193 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 194 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 195 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 196 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 197 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 198 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 199 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 200 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 201 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 202 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 203 of 205



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 204 of 205



September 2014 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council   09/02 

First Friday Flick at Jessie Mays Community Hall! 
Movie in the Hall 

6:00 p.m. 09/05 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 09/08 

Planning Commission Demagalski  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 09/10 

Library Board Hatcher  
3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 
(moved forward this month) 

09/10 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 09/11 

City Council   
7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

09/15 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) 

Hatcher  4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 09/24 

Parks Board  4th Wednesday @ 6 p.m. 09/24 

Council Candidate Forum 
6:30 p.m. at Jessie Mays 
Community Hall 

09/30 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

DeBry Demagalski   

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 205 of 205


	4A 090214 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 081814 City Council Minutes
	5A Police Department August 2014 report
	5Ab Copy of Current Police Report Stats
	5B Public Works Director Report Aug 25 2014
	5C Library Director Report to City Council 2014 09-02
	6A Proclamation 2014 MDA Fill the Boot North Plains 090614
	9A Memo Fourth of July Reconciliation
	9Ab 081814 FY15 Fourth of July Reconciliation
	9B Memo WCCCA IGA
	9Bb Resolution Number 1852 WCCCA  Intergovernmental Agreement
	9Bc 2014 WCCCA IGA - Final V3 No  2 added - 071414
	9C Memo Boyles Metereader LLC
	9C Resolution Number 1853 Approval contract with Metereaders LLC
	9Ca Meter Reads - outsource v in house April 2014
	9Cb Meter Readers Contract
	9Cc Meter Readers Contract Exhibit A
	13B Calendar September 2014
	9D Memo Beneficiary Pumpkin run
	9E Rankin & Vanderzanden property appraisal and offer to the City
	9F July 2014 Check Register



